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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good

          3  afternoon. This is the Committee on Housing and

          4  Buildings. My name is Madeline Provenzano, and I am

          5  the Chairperson.

          6                 Today the Committee will conduct its

          7  first hearing on Intro. No. 87. This bill was

          8  designed to amend Local 25 of 2000, which modified

          9  the underutilization test for 421-a tax benefits.

         10                 The 421 program is authorized under

         11  the real property tax law of the State of New York,

         12  and it is intended to promote the construction of

         13  new multiple dwellings by providing a declining tax

         14  exemption on the increase in assessed valuation

         15  created by the improvement.

         16                 The benefits may also be obtained in

         17  some instances for the substantial rehabilitation of

         18  certain low- and moderate-income housing units when

         19  such construction is carried out pursuant to an

         20  agreement with the Department of Housing

         21  Preservation and Development as allowed under the

         22  law.

         23                 Pursuant to authorization granted

         24  under state law, the Council may amend and adopt

         25  certain local laws pertaining to eligibility to
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          2  receive 421-a benefits, including geographic

          3  restrictions on eligibility.

          4                 To be eligible for consideration to

          5  receive 421-a benefits, a new construction site must

          6  first have met one of four conditions three years

          7  prior to the start of construction. The site must

          8  have been either 1) underutilized, 2) vacant, 3)

          9  predominantly vacant, or 4) improved with a

         10  non-conforming use.

         11                 During the period of construction, or

         12  for a period not more than three years immediately

         13  following commencement of construction, eligible

         14  421-a projects receive an exemption from real

         15  property taxation.

         16                 Upon the completion of construction

         17  or three years after the commencement of

         18  construction, whichever occurs sooner, the property

         19  may be eligible to receive a ten, 15, 20 or 25-year

         20  tax exemption. These exemptions are only for the new

         21  value created by the improvement.

         22                 In Fiscal Year 2001, 32,449 dwelling

         23  units received 421-a tax benefits for a total tax

         24  expenditure of $111.3 million.

         25                 The current basis for determining
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          2  underutilization requires one to assess the use of

          3  the property 36 months prior to the start of

          4  construction. This bill, Intro. No. 87, would modify

          5  the underutilization test based on the standards

          6  created in Local Law 25, so that a site that was not

          7  zoned to permit residential use 36 months prior to

          8  the start of construction, but where residential use

          9  has subsequently been allowed, could, as an

         10  alternative, be determined as underutilized based on

         11  the relative size of the replacement residential

         12  building as measured by floor area ratio when

         13  compared to the floor area ratio of the

         14  non-residential building that was on the site.

         15                 This alternative test would allow for

         16  the development of sites without the need to wait

         17  for three years from when the zoning was changed and

         18  would mean that more sites will be eligible for

         19  421-a benefits.

         20                 Members of the Committee, other

         21  Council Members and members of the public have

         22  expressed a great deal of interest in crafting ways

         23  to develop affordable housing. This bill will help

         24  with this endeavor.

         25                 The Committee expects to hear
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          2  testimony from representatives of the Department of

          3  Housing, Preservation and Development, the real

          4  estate industry, housing advocates and other

          5  interested persons.

          6                 If you wish to testify before the

          7  Committee, please sign in with the Sergeant-At-Arms,

          8  if you have not already done so, and I would ask

          9  that speakers limit their testimony to the subject

         10  of the bill before the Committee today, and any

         11  proposed amendments to the bill at this time.

         12                 I would ask that Lisa Yee and James

         13  Gardella take their seats, and in the meantime I

         14  will introduce members of my Committee.

         15                 Councilwoman Gale Brewer; Councilman

         16  James Oddo; Councilwoman Melinda Katz; Councilman

         17  Kendall Stewart; and Councilwoman Diana Reyna.

         18                 Thank you for being here, and, Jim,

         19  you're on.

         20                 Introduce yourself.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         22  Thank you, Madam Chairman. Thank you.

         23                 James Gardella, Assistant

         24  Commissioner for Intergovernmental Affairs at the

         25  Department of Housing Preservation and Development.
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          2                 And Lisa?

          3                 MS. YEE: Good afternoon Chairperson

          4  Provenzano, and members of the Committee. I am Lisa

          5  Yee, Director of Tax Incentive Programs at the New

          6  York City Department of Housing Preservation and

          7  Development.

          8                 Thank you for inviting me here today

          9  to speak about Intro. 87. This bill will extend the

         10  benefits of the 421-A program to new housing

         11  construction in areas that have recently been

         12  rezoned or allowed by variance to permit residential

         13  use.

         14                 The City's Department of Housing

         15  Preservation and Development administers 11

         16  different programs that provide tax incentives for

         17  the construction of new residential buildings and

         18  the rehabilitation of existing housing in New York

         19  City.

         20                 Since 1971, the 421-a partial tax

         21  exemption program has played an important role in

         22  our overall housing production program.

         23                 It has spurred the construction of

         24  new multiple dwellings by providing a limited period

         25  of exemption from tax liability for the increase in
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          2  assessed value resulting from the new improvements.

          3  The land on which the development sits remains fully

          4  taxable.

          5                 To date, 421-a has been instrumental

          6  in the creation of over 130,000 apartments

          7  throughout the City, many of them for low-income

          8  families.

          9                 Since its enactment in 1971, the

         10  421-a has generated a wide variety of housing, from

         11  three- and four-unit small apartment houses

         12  throughout the City to high-rises in Manhattan. In

         13  the 1980s the City Council restricted the

         14  availability of 421-a in the Manhattan Central

         15  Business District. By making 421-a benefits

         16  available in the Manhattan exclusion zone, only if a

         17  developer provides affordable housing units, the

         18  City has ensured that the tax exemption provided is

         19  offset by the provision of much needed affordable

         20  housing.

         21                 Projects in the Manhattan exclusion

         22  zone cannot receive 421-a benefits, unless at least

         23  20 percent of the housing built on-site is

         24  affordable to low-income households, the 80/20

         25  program, or affordable housing units are built

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  off-site, the Negotiable Ticket Program.

          3                 Generally, developers who elect the

          4  80/20 option secure a 20-year exemption while those

          5  who purchase negotiable certificates receive a

          6  ten-year exemption.

          7                 Outside of the Manhattan exclusion

          8  zone, a ten-year exemption applies to projects south

          9  of 110th Street in Manhattan, while projects in

         10  Northern Manhattan and the four other boroughs

         11  receive a 15-year exemption, which is increased by

         12  ten years if the project is governmentally assisted.

         13                 In the 1990s, as a direct result of

         14  granting 421-a tax benefits in Manhattan, 2,261

         15  units of affordable housing for low and

         16  moderate-income families were created outside of

         17  Manhattan, including 809 units in Brooklyn, 1,023

         18  units in the Bronx, 21 units in Queens, and 408

         19  units in Staten Island.

         20                 During the same period, 2,525

         21  affordable units were built in on-site 80/20

         22  buildings and in off-site certificate buildings in

         23  Manhattan.

         24                 In the past three years, the 421-a

         25  program has produced an additional 1,844 affordable
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          2  units, including 228 units in Brooklyn, 691 units in

          3  the Bronx, and 925 in Manhattan.

          4                 Thus, while the primary aim of the

          5  state 421-a law is to encourage the development of

          6  market rate housing in New York, the City's local

          7  law provisions of 421-a have also expanded the

          8  number of affordable housing opportunities in all

          9  five boroughs of the City.

         10                 Of the 243 421-a applications

         11  received in the last fiscal year, 216 or 89 percent

         12  were for the construction of new multiple dwellings

         13  in the boroughs outside of Manhattan.

         14                 Not all residential projects

         15  automatically receive 421-a. To qualify for 421-a,

         16  the project must entail the construction of a new

         17  multiple dwelling on a site that was either vacant,

         18  predominantly vacant, underutilized, or improved

         19  with a non-conforming use three years prior to the

         20  commencement of construction.

         21                 Under current law, where a site was

         22  improved with a non-residential building three years

         23  prior to the commencement of construction, such site

         24  must meet two criteria to qualify as underutilized

         25  based on building size.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Intro. 87, which is before you today,

          3  amends part of this underutilization test to clarify

          4  how the test applies to sites located in areas that

          5  have been recently rezoned or permitted for

          6  residential use.

          7                 Where the site did not permit

          8  residential use three years prior to the

          9  commencement of construction, the bill allows the

         10  site to qualify for 421-a benefits, if the former

         11  non-residential building had a floor area ratio of

         12  less than or equal to 75 percent or 50 percent in

         13  Manhattan south of or adjacent to 110th Street, of

         14  the new residential building replacing it.

         15                 By amending the site eligibility

         16  criteria for 421-a, this bill promotes new housing

         17  construction in recently rezoned areas and on sites

         18  where variances have been granted for residential

         19  development.

         20                 Since such zoning districts did not

         21  allow residential use as of the operative date for

         22  determining site eligibility three years prior to

         23  the commencement of construction, such units cannot

         24  presently meet that part of the underutilization

         25  test.
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          2                 This bill allows buildings in zoning

          3  districts where residential use was not allowed

          4  within three years prior to the commencement of

          5  construction to qualify based on this

          6  underutilization test.

          7                 Without this alternative, it is very

          8  difficult for such projects to qualify for 421-a

          9  benefits.

         10                 In essence, this would require

         11  demolition of the non-residential building on the

         12  site, and a three-year wait before commencing

         13  construction and applying for 421-a benefits as a

         14  vacant site.

         15                 By adopting this amendment, the City

         16  avoids a potential three-year delay in the

         17  commencement of greatly needed new housing

         18  construction, since almost no new housing has been

         19  constructed without 421-a benefits.

         20                 Moreover, sites that are located in

         21  essentially in the same neighborhood would not be

         22  treated differently simply because one block had

         23  been recently rezoned, while another had permitted

         24  residential use.

         25                 This amendment will greatly assist in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  the creation of new housing and is an integral part

          3  of the City's recent rezoning and re-examination of

          4  former manufacturing and commercial zones for

          5  residential uses where it is appropriate.

          6                 We urge the earliest possible

          7  favorable consideration of this proposal.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         10                 Jim, you look like you want to say

         11  something.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: No.

         13  I learned long ago, Madam Chairperson, never

         14  volunteer. But we'll be glad to answer any questions

         15  that you have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         17                 I'm going to start with, I guess this

         18  regards the 80/20. I would also like to introduce

         19  Councilman Lou Fidler, who has joined us. And, yes,

         20  I would love to convene this meeting outside, but

         21  that would mean, you know, microphones. Next time.

         22                 Since the law doesn't really define

         23  low- to moderate-income criteria, I'm interested in

         24  knowing how HPD would define it. Specifically, I

         25  guess, in 80/20, how would you define, you know,
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          2  what criteria is used for low income, what criteria

          3  is used for moderate income?

          4                 MS. YEE: We do have a definition in

          5  our regulations for the 421-a program for low and

          6  moderate income.

          7                 Low-income units are those for which

          8  the household has an income of no more than 60

          9  percent of the area median income.

         10                 Moderate-income households --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Say that

         12  again.

         13                 MS. YEE: Up to 60 percent of the

         14  average median income.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, which?

         16  Give me a for instance.

         17                 MS. YEE: Which is determined every

         18  year.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         21  Madam Chairperson, maybe as a base to the last

         22  numbers that we have for that in New York City, for

         23  a family of four median income is 59,000. So, 60

         24  percent.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So that's
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          2  moderate income.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: No,

          4  the low income is 60 percent of that number.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Oh, okay, 60

          6  percent of 59.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Of

          8  59,000.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         10                 MS. YEE: Moderate income is defined

         11  as between 60 and 100 percent of median income.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So that would

         13  be 60 to 100 percent of the 59?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         15  Right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I'm just

         17  learning all this stuff myself.

         18                 In the 80/20 housing, the 80 could be

         19  luxury housing and the 20 low income, correct?

         20                 MS. YEE: Yes, that's correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Where would

         22  moderate income fit into that?

         23                 My thought is it goes from luxury to

         24  low, you know, maybe we should be looking at more of

         25  a mix, which would be a more graduated luxury,
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          2  moderate, low or you know?

          3                 MS. YEE: Under the 421-a program for

          4  both the 80/20s -- well, for the 80/20s where there

          5  is on-site affordable housing, it's true that it is

          6  20 percent of the total number of units in that

          7  development must be for low- and moderate-income

          8  housing.

          9                 For off-site affordable housing

         10  units, what we call our certificate programs, the

         11  number of certificates for market rate, which render

         12  market rate units eligible for the 421-a tax

         13  benefits, depend upon the type of affordable housing

         14  that is being built. For a low-income -- for a

         15  moderate-income unit, for each unit of moderate

         16  income affordable housing that's built, the

         17  developer generates five certificates, which would

         18  make five market rate units eligible for 421-a tax

         19  benefits.

         20                 For moderate-income households -- did

         21  I say low income?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No, you said

         23  --

         24                 MS. YEE: I said moderate.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.
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          2                 MS. YEE: Okay. I'm sorry that was

          3  four, that was four certificates.

          4                 For low-income units they get five

          5  certificates, and for homeless units they get, for

          6  units that are reserved for homeless families, a

          7  developer will get six certificates.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Explain

          9  certificates.

         10                 MS. YEE: Each certificate, what we

         11  loosely call certificates, each certificate can be

         12  used to obtain 421-a tax benefits for one market

         13  rate unit.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Which could

         15  be two-family house, three-family house or

         16  six-family house?

         17                 MS. YEE: Well, 421-a is only applied

         18  to multiple dwellings, three or more.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So, it would

         20  have to be more than six units?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: No,

         22  three or more.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Three or

         24  more, okay.

         25                 MS. YEE: Right. So, if you had a
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          2  multiple dwelling of only three units you would buy

          3  three certificates. You buy units that were good for

          4  three market rate, a certificate that would make

          5  three of your market rate units eligible.

          6                 That could be, if it were a homeless

          7  unit that was built, that homeless unit would have

          8  generated --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So that it

         10  would make up your 20 percent?

         11                 MS. YEE: These are off-site. Our

         12  certificate program relates to the development of

         13  affordable units on an off-site --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Right.

         15                 MS. YEE: Other than where the market

         16  rate development that will be using the

         17  certificates. The affordable housing is being built

         18  off-site, it is not being built on the premises of

         19  the market rate development.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, I'm

         21  confused.

         22                 MS. YEE: There are two types.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, it was

         24  my understanding, talking about 80/20 specifically

         25  in the districts below, whatever, that -- well,
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          2  she's the authority over there, but I'm not going to

          3  let her talk at all. If you could do your 80 percent

          4  in that area, and the 20 percent off-site? Or am I

          5  wrong?

          6                 MS. YEE: No. No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No. Okay. It

          8  has to be in the same --

          9                 MS. YEE: In the same development.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         11                 MS. YEE: The same building.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, then I

         13  got it.

         14                 I'm going to turn this over for

         15  questions, and then we'll come back. I don't want to

         16  hog the whole thing.

         17                 Councilwoman Reyna.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair.

         20                 I just want to ask, if the 421-a tax

         21  benefits are applied to zoning areas where it's

         22  going to be for mixed use development?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         24  Well, at the present time, if that means residential

         25  uses are allowed now then 421-a is available there
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          2  now. If you're suggesting manufacturing through

          3  residential zones, a future zoning change, that's

          4  what's in front of you, is here to address, it

          5  doesn't really work, it doesn't really work at the

          6  present time if the area did not allow residential

          7  development last week, last month or last year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right. So,

          9  Intro. No. 87 is going to be able to address the

         10  mixed use development so that 421-a tax benefits

         11  would be applicable?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: To

         13  residential units where formerly only manufacturing

         14  was allowed and where residential wasn't allowed,

         15  yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Would the 80/20

         17  -- I would be interested in raising those taxes,

         18  instead of 80/20 for it to be more affordable,

         19  perhaps 50/50. And of course, I'm asking for a lot,

         20  but that would be a more affordable project rather

         21  than 80/20. Is that something that this can address

         22  so that we can redefine what 80/20 has done in the

         23  past and increase those affordable units to 50/50?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         25  Well, Intro. 87 doesn't speak to that at all.
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          2                 What's before you today is, I don't

          3  want to characterize -- what's before you is a

          4  rather limited adjustment to the program.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Let me just

          6  explain why I'm mentioning this.

          7                 I have manufacturing areas in my

          8  district that are going before standard and appeals,

          9  variances, and they're getting the approval to

         10  change the zoning so that they can create market

         11  rate apartments.

         12                 So, in reality, we're almost giving

         13  up the only land we have for market rate rather than

         14  a better mixed use zoning. And this would create

         15  even worse of a hindering on my community, so that

         16  wherever we have possibilities of creating

         17  affordable housing, it's not going to create

         18  affordable housing per se, it's more like we're

         19  handing over buildings so that they can become

         20  market rate, therefore, gentrifying more of the

         21  community, therefore displacing the families that

         22  have been there for years.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I'm

         24  going to ask Lisa, do you want to address that one?

         25                 MS. YEE: Yes.
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          2                 The 80/20 option is only available

          3  for buildings within the Manhattan exclusion zone.

          4  So, projects that are being considered outside of

          5  that zone, which is roughly 96th Street down to 14th

          6  and the West Village.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So this does

          8  not address outer boroughs?

          9                 MS. YEE: No. Off-site housing,

         10  off-site affordable housing units can be created in

         11  the outer boroughs, and those units that are created

         12  in off-site housing can generate certificates which

         13  can be sold for projects within the Manhattan

         14  exclusion zone.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: She's

         16  confused now because her understanding is that it's

         17  limited only to Manhattan, but it's not.

         18                 The whole 421-a is not limited to

         19  Manhattan. They're specifically talking about

         20  Manhattan, but you could do it anywhere in the City.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: You

         22  can do it anywhere in the City if the development of

         23  new housing within Manhattan basically, we'll call

         24  it below 96th Street, can throw off through this

         25  program, can throw off new housing construction in
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          2  other boroughs.

          3                 If they choose not to build, if

          4  someone wants the tax abatements possible from

          5  421-a, and doesn't want to build an 80/20 building

          6  in the Manhattan Central Business District, but

          7  wants some tax abatement from new construction in

          8  Manhattan, they have to develop low and

          9  moderate-income new housing in the other boroughs.

         10  So, it throws off benefits to the other boroughs, so

         11  in that extent, you know, we can't really put walls

         12  around the program, but there are certain rules for

         13  Manhattan that have benefits for the other boroughs,

         14  but the applicability of it, if you build new

         15  housing in Queens or Brooklyn or the Bronx, you can

         16  also take advantage of 421-a.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: It's

         19  just, you don't have to provide, if you do it in the

         20  Bronx, Brooklyn and Queens, you don't have to

         21  provide low-income housing elsewhere.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Right.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         24  Okay?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.
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          2                 Councilwoman Katz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So basically, if

          4  you change it from manufacturing to residential,

          5  it's basically the same criteria, except for the

          6  three years, and you have the floor ratio issue

          7  then, that becomes your criteria to get this

          8  exemption; is that basically all it is?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         10  Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That's all it

         12  is, right?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Is that a

         15  clearer way of putting it?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I

         17  think that's fair.

         18                 Right now, if you want to develop new

         19  residential units in a formerly manufacturing area,

         20  the most feasible way to do it is you've got to

         21  knock down what's there and let the land sit for

         22  three years.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: For three years.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         25  Therefore, this is a housing production incentive,
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          2  we don't have to let anything sit for three years if

          3  you adopt this.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm just trying

          5  to simply put this, if I can --

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          7  Okay.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Before it had to

          9  be vacant, if you were changing the zoning for three

         10  years, underutilized for three years, predominantly

         11  vacant for three years, or improve of the

         12  non-performing use?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Basically.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And now what

         17  you're saying is we shouldn't have to wait for the

         18  three years if we changed the zoning, as long as the

         19  relative sides of the replacement residential

         20  building is measured by the floor area ratio and

         21  compared to the floor area ratio of the

         22  non-residential that was on the site.

         23                 That's basically what you're saying?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         25  Well, with one little caveat, it would be not just
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          2  if the zoning was changed, but if the development

          3  receives a variance from the Board of Standards and

          4  Appeals. And that's because that's the way the 421

          5  legislation is right now for everything else.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: So,

          8  that's the only change.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Great. Thank

         10  you.

         11                 Can I yield my time here?

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I would also

         14  like to introduce Council Member Leroy Comrie, who

         15  has joined us, and would like to ask a question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Good

         17  afternoon.

         18                 I had a question on, you just

         19  mentioned that you could change commercial

         20  properties and eliminate the time frame, could you

         21  start to speculate on what areas in the outer

         22  boroughs you would do these kinds of projects?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         24  Well, I guess, first of all, we would point out

         25  there was nothing in this proposed bill that has any
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          2  effect on changing Land Use.

          3                 You know, as you well know from our

          4  several meetings on Land Use projects in your

          5  district, there's a process for that to happen. That

          6  process, when it's an area-wide zoning change, it

          7  involves what's called a ULURP review under the

          8  City's Uniform Land Use Review Procedure, and the

          9  other process for smaller individual lot changes is

         10  a variance from the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         11                 We're the City's Housing agency, not

         12  its Land Use agency, so we're not really familiar

         13  with what areas City Planning has under study for

         14  area-wide zoning changes from manufacturing to

         15  residential.

         16                 I did, like probably all of you, I

         17  did read in the paper that that is an element of the

         18  strategic plan of the new Commissioner of City

         19  Planning that she's having her Department look very

         20  carefully at where there's an opportunity to rezone

         21  to create new housing opportunities, but it's just

         22  not part of this bill. The adoption of this would

         23  enable housing production to be facilitated in areas

         24  where the Council had approved a proposal from City

         25  Planning to rezone, but we really can't speculate on
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          2  where those areas are.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. Do you

          4  think that variants should be entitled to a

          5  three-year commitment, or a three-year waiver, a

          6  three-year -- what am I trying to say?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: No,

          8  we got it, Councilman.

          9                 Obviously, our agency, HPD, does,

         10  because this bill would allow variances to be

         11  subject to taking advantage of 421-a, and that is,

         12  for one reason, one, because why not? They've gone

         13  through a process, it's a different process than

         14  ULURP, but they've gone through a public process and

         15  gone to the community board, and had to prove the

         16  five findings that the Board of Standards and

         17  Appeals requires, that make up practical

         18  difficulties, unnecessary hardship, so that they get

         19  a variance, so they can obtain a variance. But also

         20  because, as Ms. Yee pointed out earlier, at the

         21  present time all the rest of the 421-a legislation

         22  allows variance buildings to obtain legislation. It

         23  doesn't seem sensible to alter that from our

         24  agency's point of view.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, and
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          2  what's the minimum size of these projects in the

          3  outer boroughs, conversion projects, as far as the

          4  amount of apartments?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: The

          6  minimum size really is multiple -- unless you mean

          7  room size, in terms of number of units, three or

          8  more, has to be three or more, because it doesn't

          9  apply to one- or two-family houses.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. And as

         11  far as the lot size, have you done like anything?

         12  I'm still concerned about conversion of oversized

         13  lots in my district to multiple housing.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         15  Okay. The lot size is not determined by anything in

         16  the 421 legislation but rather by zoning. I mean,

         17  any new residential construction that might occur

         18  would have to obey either the existing zoning or

         19  what the developer got a variance for. So, I mean

         20  there's other protections.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. All

         22  right, I appreciate that. Thank you.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Councilwoman
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          2  Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 I hear 421-a and I get nervous. As

          6  Frank knows, we spent the entire 1980s redoing it

          7  and making sure that it was not given as a give-away

          8  to developers south of 110th Street, so I just

          9  e-mailed Ruth Messinger to ask for her opinion on

         10  this bill. I think she's overseas, but she just

         11  e-mailed me back that she's reading online. So,

         12  that's kind of fun.

         13                 My question is, just in terms of -- I

         14  think it's broader than this bill, but you say here

         15  that 2,525 affordable units were built in the 80/20

         16  buildings in Manhattan and then another 925; is that

         17  a list that's publicly available as to where all

         18  these buildings are?

         19                 Because one of the concerns that we

         20  have, I know this is not just particular to Intro.

         21  No. 87, is that just as the Mitchell-Lamas are

         22  hitting their 20-year limit, many of these

         23  abatements are going to hit their 20-year limits,

         24  and it's never been clear, we have many, many 80/20

         25  units on the West Side of Manhattan, and it's never
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          2  been clear to us what happens when that 20-year

          3  limit, one, is supposed to be stabilized, but at

          4  what stabilization rate? So that's something that I

          5  think we should be conscious of as we try to produce

          6  more affordable units under this program.

          7                 Can you answer that for me? Is it

          8  possible to get a list of where all these 80/20

          9  buildings are?

         10                 And I also have spent a great deal of

         11  time with Susan Cole, who is head of Settlement

         12  Housing Fund, and she does many of the rent-ups of

         13  the 20 proportion of the 80/20. I have spent hours

         14  and hours with her, and it is a procedure that the

         15  developer goes through, in terms of making sure that

         16  the 20 percent is according to the median income,

         17  but a person moves or dies and so on, and how the

         18  person, that apartment is filled, is also something

         19  that comes up for the next occupant while that tax

         20  abatement continues. Who oversees all of that?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         22  We're consulting in hopes you won't have Ms.

         23  Messinger come and ask us questions.

         24                 No, I'm very fond of Ruth, I

         25  apologize. I apologize publicly for that.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'll put that

          3  in the e-mail, too.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes

          5  to the first question. 80/20 lists, we don't have it

          6  with you but we can get you a list of 80/20

          7  buildings.

          8                 The second question, I think the

          9  supervision of it depends on who --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: HDC or HFA or

         11  you or --

         12                 MS. YEE: We also have our own 80/20s

         13  under the 421-a regulations, and for those 80/20s we

         14  do have, we have people on staff who conduct audits

         15  and they go out on a rotating basis and actually

         16  look at the rent history on the unit to make sure

         17  that they are in compliance.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Can we get

         19  copies of that, Madam Chair? I'd just be curious,

         20  because if we are expanding the program, which is,

         21  you know, sort of what we're talking about here, I

         22  just want to be sure that, you know, that it's a

         23  good program.

         24                 And I also wonder how, there's also

         25  been an issue about trying to be sure that there are
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          2  people from the neighborhood, you know, in other

          3  words, in terms of the 20 percent, trying to see if

          4  there are people who are eligible, a certain

          5  percentage from the neighborhood. Is that also part

          6  of your plan?

          7                 In other words, the 20 percent

          8  obviously has to fit a certain income, but is it

          9  neighborhood-based? I know in some programs it's 30

         10  percent of the 20 percent is neighborhood based; is

         11  that something that you're aware of?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: The

         13  neighborhood component is, the neighborhood

         14  preference component --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: --

         17  Of 30 percent is typical to many, many of our

         18  programs. Honestly, this isn't exactly an HPD

         19  program.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I understand

         21  that.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: This

         23  doesn't quite fit with the programs that have that

         24  preference.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I understand.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BREWER: So,

          3  that's something we'd have to find out about. I

          4  mean, it will fit in if we're going to get back to

          5  you with the -- to the Committee with the 80/20

          6  building list, and the rent up guidelines and

          7  standards, certainly whether or not there is

          8  community preference here is I think an element of

          9  rent-up guidelines and standards and we can get back

         10  with that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And also how

         12  the 20 years, although I don't think 20 years is

         13  actually up in any of the 80/20 programs, but once

         14  it is up, how is the tenant supposed to continue to

         15  live in an apartment that he or she, on the west

         16  side anyway, may or may not be able to afford?

         17                 It's just never been clear, after

         18  hundreds of discussions at the community board

         19  level, for instance.

         20                 So, I mean that's -- somewhat I'd

         21  like to have this information before I vote on this

         22  bill in particular.

         23                 I do know the history of it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We're not

         25  voting on it today, so.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So you will

          4  have it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          8  Member Stewart.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Good

         10  afternoon. Thank you, Madam Chair. I want you to

         11  teach me a little bit today so I can understand

         12  what's happening.

         13                 The 421-a, is that a program that

         14  really right now has to wait for where you do

         15  convert some property based on the zoning for

         16  manufacturing to residential, and in order to do

         17  that you wait for three years, have the property

         18  wait for three years at current, and the new law

         19  you're saying is, number 87, is to do away with that

         20  three years?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         22  Councilman Stewart, I think you could teach us. Yes,

         23  you've got it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Now, the next

         25  question is, and there is tax exemption for that?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          3  That's the benefit that's conferred by this program,

          4  yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Who, and how

          6  do you determine the tax exemption, it says here,

          7  ten, 15, 25, how you determine the tax --

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          9  Okay, it depends on where in the City, where in the

         10  City the structure is, predecessors to this Council

         11  decided that they wanted the amount of exemption on

         12  the new construction to be for a shorter time in

         13  this Manhattan Central Business District in what

         14  some people might want to call the Gold Coast of

         15  Manhattan than in the outer boroughs where they

         16  wanted it to run longer?

         17                 I'm trying to give you the bigger

         18  picture, rather than get involved in the ten and 20

         19  years.

         20                 Then your predecessors wanted

         21  additional years of tax exemption to be granted when

         22  the building involved government assistance, when

         23  there was City or State or federal tax money being

         24  put into the construction, they, you know, when

         25  people were getting low and moderate, or some form
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          2  of subsidization in the housing, they wanted the tax

          3  exemption to run with the building longer.

          4                 So, it's geography and it's whether

          5  it's government-assisted or not. The shortest amount

          6  of time is in Manhattan Central area below 96th

          7  Street. A little longer tax abatement from 96th to

          8  110th and then the longest period except for

          9  government assisted, which is the longest, the next

         10  longest period north of 110th, Brooklyn, Bronx,

         11  Queens, Staten Island.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         13  The other question is, right now you have to get a

         14  variance to change from one zone to the next, for

         15  the building, right?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         17  They're two different devices. You can get a zoning

         18  change, or you can get a variance. They're two

         19  different ways to go for manufacturing.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: If you are

         21  doing with it three years, I'm just trying to find

         22  out, when we enact this 87, if you would have to

         23  still go through the same process of getting the

         24  variance change to build.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:
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          2  Right. I think I discussed that in answering

          3  Councilman Comrie's question. The process of getting

          4  the zoning change or the variance would be exactly

          5  the same. You still have to come to the Council for

          6  a zoning change. What happens is once you get it,

          7  you can now get the tax exemption immediately. You

          8  don't have to get it and then wait a number of

          9  years, a number of years, your property sits for up

         10  to three years before you can take advantage of the

         11  legislation. So, once you get it you can build with

         12  the taxes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You're

         14  talking about taxes now. I'm not talking about taxes

         15  now, I'm talking about the process --

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: The

         17  process, the Land Use process stays exactly the

         18  same.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Same?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         21  Exactly the same. Not changed by this legislation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, I also

         24  at this time, because this is my third meeting and I

         25  don't think I've ever done it, would like to
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          2  introduce Terzah Nasser, who is Counsel to the

          3  Committee, and David Pechefsky who is our Financial

          4  Analyst, and Sarah Marks, who is our Policy Analyst.

          5                 And I just want to tell you, Kendall,

          6  and maybe the rest of the Committee, that I spent

          7  probably an hour with Terzah, and she helped me to

          8  understand the legislation, and we actually had, you

          9  know, little plots, and a little building, and it

         10  was very helpful. So, maybe in the future, if we

         11  could arrange for everybody to be there when we're

         12  trying to understand it, it would be helpful.

         13                 I would also like to introduce Robert

         14  Jackson, who has joined us, and he has a question.

         15                 And Tony Avella, Councilman. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Good

         18  afternoon. How are you?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         20  Good.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: How does the

         22  HPD define substantial rehabilitation? I mean, what

         23  criteria is used to determine, you know, substantial

         24  rehabilitation?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:
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          2  First, generally, since the buildings talked about

          3  in this legislation have to have been vacant, they

          4  always need substantial work. Generally that means

          5  five systems. A boiler, electric, plumbing, windows,

          6  roof. Substantial rehabilitation is when you have to

          7  do most of, three or more of those systems.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, three or

          9  more of the five systems.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And do you

         12  have any projects that were substantially rehabbed

         13  that you could site, you know, off the top of your

         14  head, or you could send us a list, and tell me

         15  whether or not those systems were, you know, five or

         16  three, or was it vacant? Would you have that

         17  information? Not necessarily now. If you know off

         18  the top of your head any projects, that would be

         19  fine, but if not, I'm sure that you can.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: We

         21  could certainly come up with a list of buildings,

         22  what we're debating is whether we would after the

         23  fact know all the work that was done. But we will

         24  work on coming up with that. I mean, I see what

         25  you're asking.
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          2                 Actually, I brought a project to the

          3  Council last fall that involved substantial rehab

          4  under this program in Council Member Quinn's

          5  district, so in fact that's probably going on right

          6  now. We can document what they're doing on that one,

          7  and I'll give you a list of all the projects. We can

          8  do it. I'm talking out loud to you. I'm responding

          9  aloud to your question.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That's okay.

         11  And I appreciate that.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: We

         13  can do it, Councilman.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, in

         15  essence, my understanding of the substantial is, is

         16  to have three or more of the building-wide systems

         17  replaced.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Of if a

         20  building is empty or anything with the minimum of

         21  three systems being replaced.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is that

         24  correct?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

          3                 What about if a developer was

          4  building in the exclusion zone? Can that developer

          5  combine the 80/20 requirements for affordable

          6  housing with substantial rehabs of an off-site

          7  property? Or are they always mutually exclusive?

          8                 MS. YEE: The substantial

          9  rehabilitation projects qualify as affordable

         10  housing projects. If you wanted to substantially

         11  rehabilitate a project, a building, that would

         12  project itself would not be eligible for 421-a tax

         13  benefits, which is only available for new

         14  construction.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 MS. YEE: But the project would

         17  probably qualify for one of our other programs. Most

         18  typically the J-51 program which deals with

         19  substantial rehabilitation and projects under the

         20  J-51 program have their own rules as to, you know,

         21  whether or not they qualify for enriched benefits.

         22  There are different requirements in terms of the

         23  amount of rehabilitation that's necessary.

         24                 The 421-a rules provide that it must

         25  be a substantial rehabilitation of a vacant multiple
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          2  dwelling. In our J-51 program, a substantial

          3  rehabilitation requires work in at least four of the

          4  systems, which are, you know, enumerated in the

          5  regulation.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, the J-51

          7  program, it has to be four of the systems?

          8                 MS. YEE: Yes, work in four of the

          9  systems.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: How many

         11  systems are there totally? You mentioned five, I

         12  would assume that there's more than that?

         13                 MS. YEE: Yes, I believe there's a

         14  list of five.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 MS. YEE: And then other rules,

         17  whether it's an elevator building or not.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         20  Member Comrie.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The 421-a

         22  program, what determines market rate housing for the

         23  area? Does HPD do anything to determine that, or

         24  it's vis-a-vis affordable housing? How are those

         25  numbers developed?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: The

          3  market is the market.

          4                 You know, it's set by what a builder

          5  can get in the neighborhood he chooses to build in.

          6  That's for the one, you know, if he's building an

          7  80/20 building, that's the answer to the rental

          8  price of 80 percent of the unit. The 20 is geared to

          9  be affordable to people of 60 percent, or between 60

         10  and 100 percent of median income, so those have to

         11  be very, very low, you know, low rental units.

         12                 But the 80 percent is, you know,

         13  obviously what the market can bear.

         14                 So long as the building constructed

         15  is six units or more, more than five years --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Of

         18  course once that market is set, they're going to be

         19  under rent stabilization, and that's going to put a

         20  cap on subsequent rent increases for even the people

         21  who have paid the high rent, even the 80 percent

         22  tenants, those units are going to be, all the units

         23  are subject to rent stabilization.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is it possible

         25  to give these developers a larger abatement so that
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          2  they could make it more than 80/20 or totally

          3  affordable market rate housing, as opposed to going

          4  for more market rate housing, or market rate

          5  redevelopments? I'm just throwing this out as a

          6  query.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          8  Well, I mean, I don't know the economic -- I'm sure

          9  you can get developers to come in and tell you it's

         10  possible to give them any kind of abatements, you

         11  know, any kind of break, but this 421-a is on the

         12  improvement, on the building, and not on the land,

         13  so I suppose the tax incentive that's still there

         14  would be some kind of break, tax on the land. It's

         15  certainly not something Ms. Yee and I are here to

         16  advocate or prepared to advocate or have even looked

         17  at, but I'm sure you can find folks who said, yes,

         18  we'll take that, too.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes. No, it's

         20  just a thought for another day. I mean, I would

         21  think wherever the builder is building, the property

         22  is on a particular block or area, and while it's

         23  kind of unfair to say what the last rents were for

         24  that particular building, because it went vacant for

         25  a reason, I would still want to try to find some
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          2  other way to develop affordable housing on a

          3  Citywide or using City subsidy to try and develop

          4  more Citywide affordable housing. It's just a

          5  thought that I wanted to try and throw out there,

          6  because if 421-a comes in and has the opportunity to

          7  redevelop in industrial areas, then who sets the

          8  rate? Or you know, there was no previous market rate

          9  for that area, I'm just concerned at how that rate

         10  is set, or, you know, what the rest of that area is,

         11  as far as what's available in affordable housing or

         12  what was available before that building was

         13  rehabbed. I guess that's a different discussion.

         14                 I'm sorry, it just came to my mind,

         15  I'm just throwing it out. Maybe I'll get to talk to

         16  some housing advocates and see how we could do that

         17  a little better.

         18                 Because if we're losing all of this

         19  Mitchell-Lama Housing and other housing, we need to

         20  find some way to make an affordable housing

         21  developer incentive at some rate, and the more I

         22  talk about it, the more difficult it sounds, to try

         23  and find a way to make it feasible for a developer

         24  to come in and build affordable, large affordable

         25  housing units.
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          2                 Well, I'm done.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          4  Member Avella.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

          6  Madam Chairman.

          7                 I have a quick question. From time to

          8  time in my district, residents have complained about

          9  illegal conversions, illegal occupancies, and have

         10  brought up the fact that some of these buildings

         11  have received tax exempt, are under tax exemption

         12  programs, like 421-a or I guess J-51. If something

         13  like that is brought to your attention or a building

         14  has applied for this program, is there any mechanism

         15  for you to go in and inspect the building, and if

         16  the legal conversion has been found to be in effect,

         17  to withdraw the tax abatement.

         18                 Because I know there is a problem if

         19  the property owner does not allow access.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         21  Well, I guess there's two parts at least to that

         22  question. The inspection part is it readily doable,

         23  something that the Department of Buildings, illegal

         24  occupancy generally involves having done for illegal

         25  conversions, which means that they haven't filed
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          2  plans at the Department of Buildings, so calling the

          3  borough, contacting the borough DOB office and

          4  getting an inspector is the easy part. So, the

          5  notion of withdrawing tax abatement because of, in

          6  essence, illegal work, work that wasn't clear by

          7  DOB, I don't know if we can answer that part.

          8                 MS. YEE: I don't know the answer.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I'm

         10  sorry, we can get you the answer, Councilman. That

         11  part of it we don't know. The inspection part, the

         12  giving the owner violations, is really just an

         13  everyday function of DOB.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: If I can add

         15  to this?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: If the

         18  homeowner, or the building, the property owner,

         19  allows access, one of the problems that we found in

         20  the community is that Department of Buildings goes

         21  out, cannot gain access without getting the access

         22  warrant.

         23                 There should be something in the

         24  system by which the person is getting a tax

         25  abatement. It should be mandatory as part of that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  program, that they allow access when there is a

          3  question. And if, in fact, we found to have made

          4  some sort of illegal conversion, there should be a

          5  mechanism to withdraw that tax abatement.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I

          7  don't know if it gives you any comfort or not, and I

          8  don't know if it's still in place but there was

          9  relatively recently in your borough a task force of

         10  City agencies which HPD participated in to

         11  specifically respond to and attempt to gain access

         12  to buildings that were going through both

         13  overcrowding and illegal conversions and things like

         14  that.

         15                 Honestly, I don't know if that task

         16  force is still in place, but I think, I mean you've

         17  highlighted a problem that does seem to exist in

         18  your borough, and I know the City has been receptive

         19  to responding to it in the past. But we'll have to

         20  get back to you further on the second part.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I would

         22  appreciate it.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         24  Okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,
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          2  Madam Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          4  Member Stewart.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I want to go

          6  back to what my colleague Comrie was centered to.

          7                 The terms affordable and low income

          8  and market rate, you know, to me it's somewhat

          9  misleading because some of these homes that have

         10  been built in some of these areas, the current

         11  housing around there is not as costly, as the ones

         12  that are being built now, and most of the people who

         13  move into those new homes that are being built are

         14  not even from around there. And I'm wondering, when

         15  we say that we build affordable housing for low

         16  income people, we're not really doing that because

         17  most of those people in that general vicinity cannot

         18  afford those homes, three family, or four family,

         19  that they may offer for 200 and 300, that's not

         20  affordable to most of the people who are there, who

         21  are around that area. So, the people who really will

         22  benefit from that are the people who come in from a

         23  much more affluent area who move in there because

         24  they can meet the criteria for the income, and they

         25  can meet the other criteria for credit check and all
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          2  of that.

          3                 So, when we say affordable, I'm not

          4  too sure that it's really affordable, and because of

          5  this shortage of housing in New York City, because

          6  of that shortage, when you talk about market rate,

          7  that builder can then charge a mark-up as to what he

          8  wants, because he can't get it because of that

          9  shortage. So, to say it's market rate, yes, it's

         10  market rate to the people that are from different

         11  areas that can afford it.

         12                 The people from that immediate area

         13  may not -- they cannot, it's not market rate for

         14  them. So, the term that we use I think is

         15  misleading. I think we should find a way which when

         16  we talk about building affordable homes in a

         17  particular area, it should be for that particular

         18  area, people that live in that area, because they're

         19  usually true low-income people, and the people who

         20  are moving into these homes are not really true low

         21  income, they may be medium income because they're

         22  the ones who can meet the criteria.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         24  Well, I think we may be trying to lay a lot onto the

         25  421-a program, which is using taxation, the City's
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          2  taxation policy, to help foster housing prevention.

          3  It is not really much more than that.

          4                 I think we would both agree with you

          5  that affordability, somewhat like beauty, is in the

          6  eye of the beholder. I guess the comfort I can offer

          7  you on that score is, again, this 421 is a housing

          8  production element, when HPD brings to the Council

          9  actual subsidized City-assisted programs, like

         10  Neomiah (phonetic), for new homes like Neomiah, like

         11  partnership housing, any of our myriad of assisted

         12  housing programs, we show you and disclose to you,

         13  what the income limits, if any, are. Most of our

         14  programs do have income limits. And we also, most of

         15  our programs, as in answer to I think Councilwoman

         16  Katz's question before, most of our programs contain

         17  community preferences that deal with the issue of

         18  there's a preference in the lottery for the homes,

         19  to deal with the issue of when you spoke of people

         20  from outside the neighborhood buying them. So, we

         21  have a 30 percent community preference in most of

         22  our programs.

         23                 So, I think we try to let you know

         24  exactly what the income limits, if any, are, and

         25  what the regulations are, and provide a community
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          2  preference.

          3                 I would say that happens really

          4  through our assisted programs, and that this is more

          5  of a broader program that encourages housing

          6  production across any price level. Certainly what's,

          7  you know, affordable to someone who has won the big

          8  game lottery is not what's affordable to you and I,

          9  and I think that debate just goes on and on. You

         10  know, you'll always know when we're bringing

         11  projects what the rules are and there's almost

         12  always a community preference component.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Do you have

         14  any suggestions how we can relieve that? How we can

         15  help those people, and have what we call true

         16  affordable, low-income homes? Do you have any

         17  suggestions?

         18                 Because apparently what I see here is

         19  that after we have worked out a deal to give that

         20  tax abatement and some developer is going to build

         21  those homes, we may set some sort of criteria and we

         22  leave it to them to say, well, you can sell a

         23  certain amount of these homes at market rate, and we

         24  then turn our backs, but then when we look to see

         25  what is really happening, you know, there is no set
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          2  guidelines. It's all relative. It's all relative.

          3  Because when you say affordable, and then someone

          4  who is in the neighborhood, who has been renting for

          5  all these years and wants to get one of these homes

          6  and goes over to fill out the application, and that

          7  the house is 300,000, their income is 25,000 and

          8  they can't deal with it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         10  member, let me respond to that.

         11                 I think some of the issues that we're

         12  raising here today are very important issues but

         13  don't really relate to Intro. No. 87. But we can

         14  certainly discuss it and discuss legislation that

         15  would relate to it, or another meeting where we

         16  would discuss, you know, those things. So please

         17  talk to me.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, thank

         21  you.

         22                 Do we have any other questions for

         23  HPD?

         24                 No questions? We thank you very much,

         25  once again, for being here.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          3  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Michael

          5  Slattery.

          6                 Welcome.

          7                 MR. SLATTERY: Thank you. Good

          8  afternoon. I'm Michael Slattery, Senior Vice

          9  President of the Real Estate Board of New York, and

         10  we're here to testify in favor of this proposal.

         11                 But I think in talking about 421-a,

         12  housing production, tax exemptions, it's always

         13  important to put the housing production of the City

         14  into context.

         15                 And just to quickly look at the

         16  history of the housing reductions: In 1960s, we were

         17  producing annually 36,000 units a year. In our best

         18  year during the sixties we produced 60,000 units. In

         19  the seventies we dropped to 70,000 units annually,

         20  with our best year being 24,000 units.

         21                 In the eighties we were down to

         22  10,000, with our best year being 14, and in the

         23  nineties we're down to roughly 8,000 annually, with

         24  our best year being about 11,000.

         25                 Strikingly, I think, two years in the
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          2  sixties, '63 and '64, we completed 112,000 units in

          3  two years, more than we built in the entire 1990s.

          4  We are suffering from a dramatic, uninterrupted

          5  40-year decline in housing productions, and we need

          6  to do more things to produce housing. I think I

          7  heard a lot of that from this Committee today.

          8                 And the 421-a program has been a

          9  crucial element, clearly controversial, but a

         10  crucial element, in keeping production levels where

         11  they were during the eighties and the nineties,

         12  which certainly are not satisfactory.

         13                 I think one other reason for this,

         14  which goes to the nature of this legislation, is

         15  that in 1961 we also had a major revision with the

         16  zoning resolution where we created basically three

         17  major districts, manufacturing districts, commercial

         18  districts, and residential districts. But more

         19  importantly in that resolution, we excluded housing

         20  from being built in manufacturing areas which was

         21  not the case before. And at the time we set aside

         22  roughly 20,000 acres for manufacturing in the City,

         23  which was to accommodate and allow for substantial

         24  growth of the manufacturing sector than at a million

         25  employees.
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          2                 Today that sector is down to a

          3  quarter of a million, and for a good part of the

          4  seventies and the eighties, we did not see very much

          5  rezoning of manufacturing, that was always a very

          6  contentious issue, and one that always received a

          7  lot -- was too difficult to do and very rarely done.

          8                 What we finally started to see a

          9  little bit in the nineties was some rezoning of

         10  manufacturing areas in Manhattan, in particular

         11  Sixth Avenue between 23rd Street and 29th Street,

         12  areas in Chelsea, and it was really with the arrival

         13  of those rezonings where this particular element of

         14  the 421-A program came about, where we found that we

         15  had a proposal to rezone areas for manufacturing, we

         16  knew we'd need the 421-a, and then as developers

         17  went and looked at particular sites they found out,

         18  I can't perform this test, when I look back three

         19  years, I can't do the test, we need to make a

         20  correction in the program.

         21                 So, I think what we're really here to

         22  day, that this is not going to solve a lot of the

         23  problems that have been identified here today. But I

         24  think it is an important and meaningful change, the

         25  program, and what it will do, this is not an
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          2  expansion of 421-a, this is simply eliminating a

          3  delay in the program of three years. And for housing

          4  we shouldn't have delay, we should be moving forward

          5  promptly, we should be moving forward when the

          6  market is there, because the real risk for the

          7  developer is that they wait three years after the

          8  zoning change that they've helped support, or the

          9  variance that they've helped support, and they find

         10  out that when they're ready to get started the

         11  market is not there and the housing disappears.

         12                 So, I encourage you to support this

         13  program. We are here at the Real Estate Board to

         14  discuss and other ideas to try to promote housing,

         15  housing for all income groups, and we welcome any

         16  questions you may have. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         18  Mr. Slattery. I think you really helped to, in very

         19  simple language, clarify the Intro. No. 87 for us.

         20                 Are there any questions?

         21                 Council Member Comrie.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You've cleared

         23  up my dilemma, so I would appreciate sitting down

         24  with you to discuss some other housing

         25  opportunities.
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          2                 Since I did come late to the meeting,

          3  I didn't hear the beginning speech, but I appreciate

          4  your clarity and your testimony.

          5                 MR. SLATTERY: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Councilwoman

          7  Reyna.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just wanted

          9  to say I appreciate you coming down, and I wanted to

         10  just invite you and remind you that there was a bill

         11  passed, an Intro passed in the Council, not too long

         12  ago, to create an affordable housing task force, to

         13  address affordable housing prices, and I'd like to

         14  invite you, and if I can just get your information

         15  afterward so we can start meeting with our

         16  colleagues so that we can start a question and

         17  answer series.

         18                 MR. SLATTERY: We welcome that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Next time I

         21  give one of my talks on affordable housing, I'm

         22  going to invite you, because I include this whole

         23  task force issue. I personally think we're beyond

         24  the point of task forces, since we've had many of

         25  them, and we should just get right to the
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          2  nitty-gritty and get to work. So maybe that's what

          3  we could talk about.

          4                 Okay. Any other questions?

          5                 Council Member Jackson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you for

          7  your testimony. And the statistics that you

          8  communicated just bear out what the situation was

          9  and what it should be now, and especially with the

         10  housing situation. But let me ask you a question.

         11                 Do you know anything about, I was

         12  asking the representative from HPD about substantial

         13  rehabs and, you know, you heard the testimony.

         14                 MR. SLATTERY: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Are you

         16  knowledgeable of that yourself? I mean, if I were

         17  asking you the same questions, would you respond

         18  that way? Do you have any comments on what he said?

         19                 MR. SLATTERY: Two things. One,

         20  substantial rehabilitation is not a concept that

         21  applies to 421-a, since that is simply a new

         22  construction and production program.

         23                 There are other programs that require

         24  substantial rehabilitation. I think the elements

         25  that they've identified are essentially the key
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          2  components in substantial rehabilitation.

          3                 I think it tries to draw a

          4  distinction, sometimes it's not a hard and bright

          5  line between, you know, painting and putting on new

          6  doors, and really changing the nature of the

          7  structure. And I think, you know, boilers,

          8  electrical system, plumbing, roof, windows, and then

          9  I'm sure you'll see in that security system the

         10  other types of elements that will fit into that. But

         11  I think those are the key elements and I think three

         12  of the five are a fair evaluation of what

         13  constitutes substantial rehabilitation.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 MR. SLATTERY: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 Bernie Carr and Donald Halperin.

         20                 Welcome.

         21                 MR. CARR: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Who wants to

         23  be first?

         24                 MR. CARR: I'll be first, and I think

         25  Don will help respond to questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          3                 MR. CARR: Madam Chair, Council

          4  Members, thank you for giving us the opportunity to

          5  come here today.

          6                 My name is Bernie Carr, I'm Executive

          7  Director of the New York State Association for

          8  Affordable Housing, NYSAFAH. Don is our governmental

          9  representative. And I want to thank you for the

         10  opportunity to testify today in support of these

         11  proposed amendments to the section 421-a.

         12                 I'll tell you a little about NYSAFAH.

         13  We're a statewide trade association for the

         14  for-profit affordable housing developing community.

         15  Our membership includes developers, managers,

         16  architects, financial institutions, and

         17  non-for-profit groups. Most of our members are

         18  involved in developing affordable housing here in

         19  New York City.

         20                 I would add that typically 421-a is

         21  only one of many tools that they would use in a

         22  typical project. They would combine it with any one

         23  of a variety of City, State or federal programs that

         24  would have all sorts of income and rent regulations.

         25                 As we've talked about before, the
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          2  lack of affordable housing in our City affects every

          3  aspect of life, businesses aren't able to attract

          4  and retain employees, substandard housing is linked

          5  to chronic health problems, even education, the

          6  Council's highest priority is affected by the

          7  housing crisis, the citizens housing and planning

          8  council has documented links between housing and

          9  school achievement, while the lack of affordable

         10  housing keeps away qualified teachers.

         11                 The 421-a program has long been an

         12  important tool for the developers of affordable

         13  housing, a tool which becomes even more important

         14  now as in this current budget climate where there is

         15  less capital money available for affordable housing.

         16                 One of the largest impediments to the

         17  development of affordable housing benefits,

         18  particularly in the outer boroughs, has been the

         19  lack of eligible sites.

         20                 Clearly, these sites, these

         21  manufacturing sites that we've been talking about,

         22  are no longer viable as manufacturing areas, but

         23  affordable housing can't be developed on them, even

         24  in conjunction with other programs, without these

         25  tax incentives.
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          2                 This bill, as you heard a couple of

          3  times before, would allow construction to begin on

          4  these sites immediately. The other alternative,

          5  again, as we've heard before, is for developers to

          6  tear down the buildings and just allow the site to

          7  sit idle for three years.

          8                 That will turn to obviously -- does

          9  not provide anywhere near the benefits of providing

         10  affordable housing units today.

         11                 Because it will spur development of

         12  much needed affordable housing, NYSAFAH strongly

         13  supports these amendments.

         14                 Now, any questions?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         16                 MR. CARR: Or I don't know if Don

         17  wanted to add anything to that?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Donald?

         19                 Does anyone have any questions?

         20                 I guess they're all questioned out.

         21                 MR. CARR: Well, I would just add

         22  then, in a larger, more general sense, Madam

         23  Chairman, you and I have spoken about this before,

         24  we are very much available, you know, to the Council

         25  and to individual members to talk, you know, to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  share our knowledge and our members' knowledge of

          3  affordable housing.

          4                 MR. HALPERIN: And I feel I have to

          5  say something, so, I'll answer Council Member

          6  Brewer's question, even though she's not here.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Even though

          8  she's not here, okay.

          9                 MR. HALPERIN: She asked the question

         10  about what happens to rent stabilization after the

         11  421-a benefits expire, and the last time I checked,

         12  which was a few years ago, if there's a provision, a

         13  provision must be put into the lease advising the

         14  tenant of the fact that upon expiration of the

         15  benefits, they lose their rent regulation or rent

         16  stabilization status, but if that is in the lease,

         17  then they can lose it.

         18                 So, that was the answer to her

         19  question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And it would

         21  have to be in the lease, or it doesn't have to be in

         22  the lease?

         23                 MR. HALPERIN: It would have to be in

         24  the lease.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So, it really
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          2  isn't a great surprise, they already know and should

          3  know when they sign the lease.

          4                 MR. HALPERIN: If they read the lease,

          5  it shouldn't be a surprise.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Right. Okay.

          7  This is your last chance, does anybody have any

          8  questions?

          9                 Thank you both for being here.

         10                 MR. CARR: Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: This meeting

         12  is adjourned and the bill is laid over.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 2:28 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 26th day of April 2002.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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